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UNI TED STATES OF AMERI CA
Pl ai ntiff-Appellee,
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JOHNNY RAY RI CHARD,
Def endant - Appel | ant.

Appeal fromthe United States District Court
for the Southern District of M ssissipp
(CR-1:93-6-QR)

(March 4, 1994)

Bef ore THORNBERRY, HI G3 NBOTHAM and BARKSDALE, Circuit Judges.
THORNBERRY, Circuit Judge:”

Johnny Ray Ri chard was convicted by a jury of being a felon in
possessi on of a weapon and nmaking a false statenent to a firearns
dealer. Richard was sentenced to concurrent terns of inprisonnent
of twenty-seven nonths on each count to be foll owed by concurrent

three-year terns of supervised release. Richard tinely appeals to

“Local Rule 47.5 provides: "The publication of opinions that
have no precedential value and nerely decide particul ar cases on
the basis of well-settled principles of |aw inposes needless
expense on the public and burdens on the legal profession.™
Pursuant to that Rule, the Court has determ ned that this opinion
shoul d not be publi shed.



this Court contending that the evidence adduced against him at

trial is insufficient to support his conviction.

Di scussi on
After both the Governnent and R chard rested, R chard nade a
notion for a directed verdict?, urging that the Governnent had not
shown that he know ngly purchased the weapon or had know edge of
the existence of the weapon.? The district court is obliged to
grant a defendant's notion for acquittal if "the evidence is
insufficient to sustain a conviction" for the offense charged.

Fed. R Cim P. 29(a). To evaluate sufficiency, this Court

examnes the evidence in the |ight nost favorable to the
prosecution, making all reasonable inferences and credibility
choices in favor of the verdict. United States v. Vasquez, 953

F.2d 176, 181 (5th Gir.), cert. denied, 112 S.Ct. 2288 (1992).
The evidence is sufficient if a reasonable trier of fact coul d have
found that it established guilt beyond a reasonable doubt. Id.
Richard relies on the testinony of his sister and fiancee to
support his insufficiency argunent. Richard's sister, Judy

Cervais, testified that she asked her sister-in-law, Lydia Hubbard,

1 "MWotions for directed verdict are abolished and noti ons for
judgnent on acquittal shall be used intheir place." Fed. R Crim
P. 29(a).

2 The essential elenents of possession of a firearm by a
convicted felon under 18 U.S. C. §8 922(g) are: (1) know ng receipt
or possession of a firearm by the defendant; (2) defendant was
previously convicted in a court for a crinme punishable by
i nprisonnment for a termin excess of one year; and (3) the firearm
possessed by the defendant was in or affecting commerce. United
States v. Dancy, 861 F.2d 77, 81 (5th Cr. 1988).
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to purchase a gun for her because Cervais had |ost her driver's
I i cense. Ri chard, Gervais and Hubbard went to a pawn shop
Hubbard had a Louisiana driver's license and was not allowed to
purchase the gun. According to Gervais, R chard was asked to sign
the requisite ATF form to purchase the gun, but R chard was not
told what he was signing or why he was signing the form GCervais
testified that R chard never knewthat she was purchasing a gun and
t hat he never saw the gun

Lydi a Hubbard, Richard's fiancee, testified that she purchased
the pistol for Gervais, but put it in R chard' s nane because she
did not have a Mssissippi driver's license. Hubbard stated that
she did not advise Richard of Gervais's intent to buy a gun, and
that Richard signed the paper with no knowl edge of its contents and
t hen wal ked away.

"Assessing the credibility of the witnesses and wei ghing the
evidence is the exclusive province of the jury." United States v.
G eenwood, 974 F.2d 1449, 1458 (5th Gr. 1992), cert. denied, 113
S.C. 2354 (1993). The jury was free to reject the testinony of
t he defense witnesses and to accept the testinony of the pawn shop
dealer that firearns are sold only to the individual who conpl etes,
signs and dates the ATF form In addition, the dealer testified
that his established procedure for selling firearns involves
explaining to the purchaser that the federal firearns formis to be
read carefully and conpleted only by the purchaser. He also
customarily asks to see the purchaser's driver's |license and then

verifies the purchaser's identity. Finally, an expert in



handwiting verified that the signature on the ATF form was the
sane as the defendant's signature contained in his penitentiary
packet .

Viewing the evidence in the light nost favorable to the
Governnent, a rational trier of fact could have found beyond a
reasonabl e doubt that Richard, a convicted felon, know ngly took
possession of a firearm

Next, Richard argues that the district court erred in denying
his notion for a "directed verdict"” as to count two, nmaking a fal se
statenent to a licensed firearm dealer in violation of 18 U S.C
§ 922 (a)(6).® Richard argues that he was unaware that he was
signing a formto purchase a firearmand that the defense w t nesses
established that he did not read the form nor was the form
explained to him

Again, the jury could have determ ned that Richard know ngly
made a false statenent to the deal er based on the pawn dealer's
testinony that he always required the purchaser to conplete the
questionnaire on the ATF form Viewing the evidence in the |ight
nost favorable to the Governnent, a rational trier of fact could
have found beyond a reasonabl e doubt that Ri chard know ngly nade a

fal se statenent in connection with the purchase of the firearm

3 A person violates § 922 (a)(6) if he (1) know ngly nakes a
fal se statenent while acquiring a firearmfroma |licensed deal er;
and (2) the m srepresentation was i ntended or was |ikely to deceive
the dealer with respect to any fact material to the | awful ness of
the sale. See United States v. Chanbers, 922 F.2d 228, 230-31 (5th
Cr. 1991).



Concl usi on
Based on the foregoing, we affirm Richard's conviction and

sent ence.

AFF| RMED.



